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Dear Mr. Dopp:

Thank you for your April 1, 2004, letter, co-signed by Mr. Ken Mastracchio, requesting
olarification of the Food Safety and Inspection Service (FSIS) policy regarding the net
weight determination of federally-inspeoted, case-ready meat and poultry products
labeled as enhanced and/or mavinated with solutions. We appreciate this opportunity to
clarify FSTS' pesition on net welght and to resolve any confuslon associated with net
weight compliance standards being set by the California Department of Food and
Agrioulture (CDFA) for these products,

TSI of the Department of Agtioulturs is the public health agenoy responsible for
ensuring that meat, poultry, and processed egg products are safe, wholesone, and
sccurately labeled, FSIS enforoes the Federal Meat Ingpection Act; the Poultry Products
Tnspection Act, and the Bgg Produots Inspection Act, which require Pederal ingpection
and regulation of meat, poultry, and processed egg products prepared for distribution In
commerce for use a5 human food,

On March 23, 2004, Dr, Robert Post, Director of the FSIS Labeling and Consumer

‘Protection Staff (LCPS), and hia staff met with representatives of the National Institute of

Qtandards and Technology (N18T), the American Meat Institute (AMI), and the Food
Marketing Institute (FMI), to cisouss this issue. At the moeting, and in his conversation
with you, Dr, Post explained that there seems to be & few issues that have erroneously
been lnked by the CDFA poliny.

Iiirst, 1 you know, net weight is applied to the Iabeling of most products at Federal
establishments prior to the distribution of produots in commerce. States have a functjon
{o check net weight of consumer packages at retail. Mr. Roger Maooy, un official with
CDWA, wrots to Dr. Post In August 2003 to seek advice on. whether it is appropriate to
apply the mofsture loss allowence for poultry, as provided in the NIST Handbook 133 -
AW Hditlon, to similarly processed fresh pouliry and ment products, partioularly thoss
products injeoted with a solulion, The NIST guidelines atate that & standard exists for &3
percent molsture logs allowanoe for packages of fresh pouliry, franks, holdogs, bacon,
fregh sausage, and luncheon irieats,
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Based on advics from NIST, F8(8 sent & responso fo CDFA stating thet it would bs
appropriate to pply the standard for the molsture Toss atlowanoe for packages of fresh
poultry (1.8, 3 potoent) fo fresh mesf products injeeted with & solution. The FSIS advice
was not infended to infer or estabilish a policy on the method of net welght compliance
verificafion; It was only Infendsd to provide an opinion that the 3 percent allowancs could
apply to meat products in addition to poultry products. Morsovar, tae Agency’s nat
waight Jabeling complianice regulations (9 CFR 317,19, sud 381.121(x) tnd (1)
incorporate by reference NIST Handbook 133 a8 providing the appropriate procedures o
e followed for determining net weight Jabeling compliance. Therefbre, in regard fo the
approprizte method of determining net weight complance, wo would like to note that
FSIS policies have not changed. BSIR caritinues to depend on the NIST gutdance to
determine nel weight labeling comphance:

In addition, becanse the August 2003 letter from CDFA did nof address questions zbout
how “enhancad” praduets are irheled or what constitutes product versus packaging, itis
also possible that the eppropriate method of dejermining net welght complience {5 linked
1o confusion shout what enharced products ars, how they are labeled, and whether or net
the added solutions are Intended fo be part of the labeled nat weight,

As you know, produsts containlng flavoring, seasoning, and tenderizing selutions that
have been incorporated by infecting, massaging, and/or tumbling, have been marketed for
many years. The Agency’s policies on raw bone-in pouliry, boneloss poullry, and
uncooked red meat products containing added solutions, «s well as meat products with
added solutions used in sscondary procucts, have been in existence for over two decades.
The policies are based on labeling regulations governing product identity (9 CFR
317.2(e) anad 381,117) and requive that the labels of products into which solutious are
{njeoted, or into which mesat gnd poultry ars placed, bear & prominent and conspiouous
staternent as part of the product name. The specific ingredionts it the solution may be
par: of the product neme or may be listed In the ingredients staterment o fhelgbal
Examples of such products ars “boneless turkey breast containing up to 15% ofa
solutlon,” “hesl strip loin steak. enhianced with up to 10% of  solution,” and “pork chop
flavored with 20% tarlyaki sauce.” Furtheruore, s stated In FSIS Pelicy Memo 102,
1abals on raw, enhanced meat ind pouliry products packaged with fres-flowing solutions
or sances may contain such phrases as, “hoefin barbecue ssuce” and “turkey thighs in
lemeon pepper marineds sotutien,”

Therefore, in the case of enharced products, the solutions that are added to the meat ar
poitliry or nto which the meat or poulizy are placed for fluvoring, seasoning, and
tenderizing, ave intended to be part of the product. Thus, we are in agresment with your
asesament that heosnse the solitions are identified ag part of the product names of
snhanced produets, whether the solution It incorporated into the product ot s fae-
Howing, it iz conaidered part of the product. As such, il is expected thet the labeled nat
weight applisd at the Federal establishment reprosents essentially the welght of the
product minus the peekaging. This view is further supported by the fact that if 1he ediled
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golution is niot intended to be corsumed or is intended to be strictly a packing medivm,
according fo Ageticy regulations (9 CFR 317.8(b)(17)), the product Iabeling needs to bear
a stafement to that effect.

We hape thal you find this infortaation helpful. If you need additional information ebout
(hig issue of any other food labeling policy issues, we encourage you to contuct
Dr, Robert Post, Director, LCPS, at (202) 205-0279,

We are sending a similar resporvie to Mr. Mastracchio, Thank you for writing.
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Dr. Barbara J. Masters
Acting Adminlstrator




